
Sonoma Valley Fire District 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 20, 2022 



Sonoma Valley Fire District

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 20, 2022 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Regular Meeting Agenda ................................................................................................................................ Page 2 

Item 7a - Agenda Summary - AB 361 Compliance .......................................................................................... Page 4 

Item 7b - Agenda Summary - Approval of Meeting Minutes .......................................................................... Page 5 

Item 7b – 08.09.22 Regular Meeting Minutes ................................................................................................ Page 6 

Item 7b – 08.30.22 Special Meeting Minutes ................................................................................................. Page 10 

Item 10a - Agenda Summary - Resolution 2022/2023-01 SVFD Final Budget FY 22/23 ................................. Page 12 

 Item 10a - Sonoma Valley Fire District FY 22/23 Final Budget ...................................................................... Page 13 

Item 10a - Resolution 2022/2023-01 - Adopting SVFD FY 22/23 Final Budget .............................................. Page 17 

 Item 10b - Agenda Summary - 2022-2027 Strategic Plan .............................................................................. Page 18 

 Item 10b - Sonoma Valley Fire District 2022-2027 Strategic Plan ................................................................. Page 19 

### 

1



MEETING AGENDA 
SONOMA VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Tuesday, September 20, 2022 at 6:00 P.M. 

Location: Sonoma Valley Fire District Station 1 
630 2nd Street W., Sonoma, CA  95476 

This meeting is being conducted in person and via videoconference in compliance with 
AB 361, effective September 16, 2021. Agendas and board packet materials are available at 

the following website: http://sonomavalleyfire.org 

Join by phone: 1-669-900-9128 

Meeting ID: 914 153 1767 

Meeting Passcode: 3300 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum

Board of Directors: President William Norton, Vice President John (Matt) Atkinson,
Treasurer Mark Johnson, Brian Brady, Mark Emery, Nick Greben, Terrence Leen.

3. Pledge of Allegiance

4. Confirmation of Agenda

Opportunity for the Board to reorder agenda items.

5. Comments from the Public

(At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  It is
recommended that you keep your comments to three minutes or less.  Under State Law, matters presented
under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time.  For items appearing on the
agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for consideration by the
Board of Directors.)

6. Presentations

7. Consent Calendar

a) Consideration to approve of videoconference option under AB 361.  Board will
consider approval of findings that there remains a State proclaimed COVID 19 health
emergency and local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to
promote social distancing. Action item

b) Approval of minutes from the regular meeting held on, August 9, 2022 and special
meeting held on, August 30, 2022  Action Item

8. Fire Chief’s Monthly Report

Report for August

2



9. Old Business

10. New Business

Public Hearing: The Board will conduct a public hearing to consider adoption of 
Resolution 2022/2023-01, to adopt the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 final budget.  The Board shall 

open the item for public comment and take action upon close of the public comments. 

a) Resolution 2022/2023-01 adopting the final budget for fiscal year 2022/2023.  Action
Item with roll call vote.

b) Review and consider adoption of the new Sonoma Valley Fire District Community
Driven Strategic Plan 2022-2027.  Action Item

11. Other Business to Come before the Board

12. Comments from the Floor

13. Comments/Reports from the Board

14. Closed Session

15. Adjournment

This meeting will be adjourned to the regular Board meeting on October 11, 2022 at 6:00
p.m. Meeting access will be determined based on COVID-19 restrictions in place at that
time.

Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business 
referred to on the agenda are available at the following website at http://sonomavalleyfire.org. 

3



Sonoma Valley Fire District
Board of Directors Meeting 

Agenda Item Summary 
September 20, 2022 

Agenda Item No. Staff Contact 
7a Maci Jerry, Clerk of the Board 

Agenda Item Title 
AB 361 Compliance 

Recommended Actions 
Review local officials currently imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing. 

Executive Summary 
     Since the Governor’s COVID-19 emergency orders issued in March 2020, local public agencies, such as our 
Board of Directors, have been authorized to conduct videoconference meetings without compliance with 
Brown Act teleconference and videoconference requirements in Government Code section 54953. 
     The Governor’s order expired on 9/30/21, and the California legislature passed AB 361, signed by the 
Governor on 9/16/21, which authorizes continued videoconference meetings without Brown Act compliance, 
provided the local agencies Board of Directors make a finding, every 30 days at its monthly meeting, that (1) 
there is still a State proclaimed COVID 19 health emergency; and (2) local officials (such as the County health 
officer) continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing. 
     The Board is to have an updated discussion regarding current COVID 19 protocols, with public comment 
and concluded with a roll call vote to approve the findings discussed by the Board. 

Alternative Actions 
No alternative actions are recommended. 

Strategic Plan Alignment 

Fiscal Summary – FY 22/23 
Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ District General Fund $ 
Add. Appropriations Reqd. $ Fees/Other $ 

$ Use of Fund Balance $ 
$ Contingencies $ 

Grants $ 
Total Expenditure $ Total Sources $ 
Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (if required) 
None 

Attachments 
None 

4



Sonoma Valley Fire District
Board of Directors Meeting 

Agenda Item Summary 
September 20, 2022 

Agenda Item No. Staff Contact 
7b Maci Jerry, Clerk to the Board of Directors 

Agenda Item Title 
Approval of the regular meeting minutes held on August 9, 2022 and special meeting minutes from August 30, 
2022. 

Recommended Actions 
Approve the minutes 

Executive Summary 
The minutes have been prepared for Board review and approval. 

Alternative Actions 
Correct or amend minutes prior to approval 

Fiscal Summary – FY 22/23 
Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ District General Fund $ 
Add. Appropriations Reqd. $ Fees/Other $ 

$ Use of Fund Balance $ 
$ Contingencies $ 

Grants $ 

Total Expenditure $ Total Sources $ 
Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (if required) 
Not Required 

Attachments 
1. Minutes for August 9, 2022 regular meeting
2. Minutes for August 30, 2022 special meeting

5



SONOMA VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 

Meeting was held in person at Station 1, 630 2nd Street W, Sonoma, Ca.  95476 and via 
videoconference in compliance with AB 361, effective September 16, 2021. 

Join by phone: 1-669-900-9128 | Meeting ID: 914 153 1767 | Meeting Passcode: 3300 

1. Call to Order

Treasurer Johnson called meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. in-person and via a zoom
videoconference call.

2. Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum

Board of Directors present: Treasurer Mark Johnson, Brian Brady, Mark Emery (via
videoconference), Nick Greben, and Terrence Leen. Excused Directors: President William
Norton, Vice President John (Matt) Atkinson

3. Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Director Leen and recited by all.

4. Confirmation of Agenda

No changes

5. Comments from the Public

No public present.

6. Presentations

Engineer Rodd Kneeland was honored with a proclamation for completing the final stages of
three facility remodels over the course of five years, both while on and off duty.

Toby Ford-Monroe, Nathan Jordan, and Mason Matulatis were presented proclamations for their
bravery and heroism when they took action in a life threatening situation, saving the life of their
friend.

Bob and Kristy Brindley were honored with a proclamation for their efforts to bring automated
external defibrillators into public settings through their just1mike Foundation.  Through their
committed efforts several AED’s have been installed within the City.

7. Consent Calendar

a) AB 361 legislation: Conditions within the County regarding current recommended social
distancing requirements were evaluated by the Board. All members agreed to continue both
in person and videoconference availability for the July 12, 2022 meeting.  Conditions will be
reviewed again in 30 days in compliance with new AB 361 legislation.  M/S/P Brady/Leen 5
ayes

b) Board reviewed and approved the meeting minutes from the board meeting held on June 14,
2022. M/S/P Brady/Leen 5 ayes

6



8. Fire Chief’s Monthly Report

Monthly Chief’s report attached

9. Old Business

None

10. New Business

a) Chief Akre and the Board discussed the recommended fund balance allocations based on the
SVFD FY 20/21 audit.  Director Brady motioned to approve the allocations.  M/S/P
Brady/Leen 5 ayes

11. Other Business to come before the Board

None

12. Comments from the Floor

None

13. Comments/Reports from the Board

None

14. Closed Session

None

15. Adjournment

M/S Brady/Greben 5 ayes
Meeting was adjourned at 6:55 pm to a regular Board meeting on September 13, 2022, at 6:00
p.m. This meeting will be conducted in person with videoconference capabilities available based
on local COVID-19 restrictions in place and within compliance of new AB361 legislation. Copies of
all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business referred to
on the agenda are available at the following website at http://sonomavalleyfire.org

Respectfully submitted, 

Maci Jerry 

7

http://sonomavalleyfire.org/


DATE: 8/9/2022 

TO: Sonoma Valley Board of Directors 

FROM: Chief Akre 

SUBJECT: Monthly Activity Report –June/July 2022 

A. ADMINISTRATIVE:

1. SDC:  worked with County Planning and DEM on wildfire evacuation modeling. And attended
the PAT meeting.

2. The Fire Service Working Group continues to meet to work on important fire service issues.
Initiative potential, REDCOM and Upstaffing fees, helping Districts with the LAFCO process.

3. Submitted comments to County Planning on the Springs Specific Plan Draft EIR, focusing on
impacts to Fire/EMS service delivery.

4. The Community Driven Strategic Plan is being finalized by CPSE.  We have reviewed and
made final edits. We will share the final draft and then present for approval at the September
BOD Meeting.

5. The Fire Service (SCFCA, SCFDA, and L1401) sent a joint letter to the BOS regarding the
RFP for EOA-1.  As Chair of the EMS Subcommittee, we meet weekly and are working on a
number of items including APOT, EOA compliance, RFP, and tiered responses.  We also met
with Dr Mase on the continued COVID situation and impacts to Public Safety Agencies.

6. Attended SCFCA and SCFDA Monthly Meetings, EMCC and MAC and REDCOM meetings.

7. Continue to work as FASIS and EBA subcommittee to consolidate the two JPAs.

8. Attended the Mayacamas VFF monthly meetings.  BC Andreis and crews attended the Annual
Starlight Auction fundraiser

9. Continue to work with Fire Safe Sonoma on the new prospective FSCs.

10. After the Fire Leadership Summit Sept 20-22.

B. INCIDENTS:

1. 1/4 acre grass fire off of Hwy 12 at Arnold Dr.  Quickly contained by SVFD crews.  Assisted
by CalFire.  This property has been the subject of complaints related to storage of old trees.
SVFD’s Prevention Bureau has been working on compliance with the property owner and
Sonoma County Code Enforcement and CalFire.

2. Sent 3 engines and 3 overhead on Strike teams to Oak and then McKinney Fires.  1 engine
home now.

8



C. BUDGET/FINANCE:

1. Jennifer is continuing to work on the new finance software system with MIP company.
2. The Budget will be ready for the September BOD Meeting
3. Working on identifying the “Gap funding” that might be required as KWD explores consolidation.
4. Special Tax was submitted to County ACTTC.

D. PERSONNEL:

1. Nothing to report.

E. TRAINING:

1. Volunteer drills on new lower pressure nozzles.
2. Focus on company training, ECEs, EMS

F. EQUIPMENT:

1. New BC3 Tahoe is almost finished being outfitted.
2. Placed an order for our next new ambulance – no obligation order, 2 year estimated timeline

G. BUILDINGS & LAND:

1. Continuing to work on Station 5 seismic upgrade project.  Grant submitted to Cal OES.
2. Met with Representative of Diamond A regarding Station 4 lease.
3. Sauna from Volunteer Fire Foundation was installed at Station 2.

H. PREVENTION:

1. Chipper program is actively working in the community. Will receive reimbursements from
County for Chipper and VMI.

2. VMI – completed all first-round inspections.  Waterman to Michael Dr.  Second round has
begun.  ~ 60% non-compliant

3. Had one engine participate with a prescribed burn.
4. City weed abatement complaint inspections completed (95 parcels).  District 120 complaints via

website.
5. All State mandated inspections in 2, 3, & 5 are completed for 2022.  Working on 1 now.
6. Community Education presentation to Creekside HOA
7. Website now accepting cc payments for prevention services

I. ASSOCIATION:

1. Nothing to report.

9



SONOMA VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 

SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, August 30, 2022 

Meeting was held in person at Station 1, 630 2nd Street W, Sonoma, Ca.  95476 and via 
videoconference in compliance with AB 361, effective September 16, 2021. 

Join by phone: 1-669-900-9128 | Meeting ID: 914 153 1767 | Meeting Passcode: 3300 

1. Call to Order

President Norton called meeting to order at 5:59 p.m. in-person and via a zoom videoconference
call.

2. Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum

Board of Directors present: President William Norton, Vice President John (Matt) Atkinson
Treasurer Mark Johnson, Brian Brady, Mark Emery, and Terrence Leen. Excused Directors: Nick
Greben

3. Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Director Leen and recited by all.

4. Confirmation of Agenda

No changes

5. Comments from the Public

No public present.

6. Presentations

None

7. Consent Calendar

None

8. Fire Chief’s Monthly Report

None

9. Old Business

None

10. New Business

a) Chief Akre presented the Board with a proposed contract agreement between the SVFD and
the Kenwood Fire Protection District.  The agreement is outlined to assist KFPD with staffing
services due to an eminent staffing crisis their department will be experiencing.  At the
conclusion of the Chief’s explanation and lengthy discussion between the Chief and the
Board, Director Johnson motioned for signing of the revised* contract presented by the Chief
at tonight’s meeting.  The KFPD Board is set to meet and confer over the contract during a
special meeting to be held on, Tuesday, September 6th.

10



M/S/P Johnson/Leen 6 ayes 

*Item 4 of the contract agreement originally posted in the board packet prior to the meeting
was revised from “a monthly rate of $36,038.00 per month, payable on the first of each month
that this AGREEMENT is in effect.” to “an estimated monthly amount of $37,855.00, the exact
amount to be determined by actual backfill costs incurred by the SVFD. The amount will be
calculated at the end of the month and payable by the 15th of the following month.”

11. Other Business to come before the Board

None

12. Comments from the Floor

Chief took a moment to update the Board on a structure fire that occurred this afternoon in
Fetters off of Hwy 12 and informed them of the upcoming memorial service for Les Peterson, gold
badge volunteer with City of Sonoma, on September 22nd.  A plaque will be presented and Truck
3351 will be in attendance.

13. Comments/Reports from the Board

None

14. Closed Session

None

15. Adjournment

M/S Emery/Brady 6 ayes
Tonight’s meeting was adjourned at 7:03 p.m. to a regular Board meeting on September 20, 2022,
at 6:00 p.m. This meeting will be conducted in person with videoconference capabilities available
based on local COVID-19 restrictions in place and within compliance of new AB361 legislation. The
September 13, 2022 regular meeting was postponed due to scheduling conflicts for Chief Akre and
Fire Marshal Smith, both of which will be presenting items to the Board during the next meeting.
Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business
referred to on the agenda are available at the following website at http://sonomavalleyfire.org

Respectfully submitted,

Maci Jerry

11

http://sonomavalleyfire.org/


Sonoma Valley Fire District
Board of Directors Meeting 

Agenda Item Summary 
September 20, 2022 

Agenda Item No. Staff Contact 
10a Steve Akre, Fire Chief 

Agenda Item Title 
Resolution 2022/2023-01 adopting the final District budget for fiscal year 2022/23 

Recommended Actions 
Approve 2022/23 final budget 

Executive Summary 
Chief Akre will present the FY 2022/23 final budget of the new Sonoma Valley Fire District to the Board. The 
Board is asked to adopt the final District budget. 
Some key features to acknowledge in this year’s budget are: 

• The SVFRA city contract is now recognized as a revenue and the expenses are allocated within their
proper categories.

• The budget presented reflects the Board approved special tax revenue that passed at 92.5% plus the
required inflation component.

• Per the Board’s request we created a line item on the revenue side for Fire Development Impact Fee
with a zero dollar amount.

• Per the Board’s request we reassessed the fuel budget and added additional funds to account for
increased gas prices.

• There was an increase to the following line items for actual costs realized for FY22/23
- 40116- CalPERS Glen Ellen’s unfunded liability
- 40202- Workers Comp insurance premium
- 50347- Professional contract services to account for QI Coordinator rate increase
- 60451- Insurance Property/Liability insurance premium increases

Alternative Actions 
Suggest alternatives before adopting the final budget 

Fiscal Summary – FY 22/23 
Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ 16,685,190.00 District General Fund $ 16,685,190.00 
Add. Appropriations Reqd. $ Fees/Other $ 

$ Use of Fund Balance $ 
$ Contingencies $ 

Grants $ 

Total Expenditure $ 16,685,190.00 Total Sources $ 16,685,190.00 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (if required) 

Attachments 
1. SVFD Final Budget FY 2022/23
2. Resolution 2022/2023-01

12



 Final Budget Fiscal Year 2022-2023

Account Number Description Final Budget 
2020-2021

Final Budget 
2021-2022

Final Budget 
2022-2023

Increase/(Decrease) From 
FY21-22 to FY22-23

Revenue Budget

799-00000-000-30010 Property Tax Revenue 6,086,754.00$             6,211,549.00$       6,789,598.00$     578,049.00$  
799-00000-000-30011 Property Taxes - Unsecured 189,684.00$ 193,477.00$          201,909.00$        8,432.00$  
799-00000-000-30012 RDA Pass Through (AB 1290 / RPTTF) 79,622.00$ 79,622.00$            94,637.00$          15,015.00$  
799-00000-000-30012 Residual (RPTTF) -$  -$ 200,000.00$        200,000.00$  
799-00000-000-30014 Property Taxes-Supplemental 110,715.00$ 112,929.00$          96,840.00$          (16,089.00)$
799-00000-000-30015 Property Tax - HOPTR 35,745.00$ 35,745.00$            37,174.00$          1,429.00$  
799-00000-000-30016 County Collection Fee 65,355.00$ (65,355.00)$          (65,941.00)$        586.00$  
799-00000-000-30017 Redevelopment Increment (431,542.00)$               (431,542.00)$         (480,270.00)$      48,728.00$  
799-00000-000-30018 Direct Charges 1,475,694.00$             1,793,062.00$       2,086,940.00$     293,878.00$  
799-00000-000-30019 Cost Reimbursement Coll -$  -$ -$  -$
799-00000-000-38000 Contract for Services - SDC 510,300.00$ 535,824.00$          562,584.00$        26,760.00$  
799-00000-000-37201 SVFRA Transfer from Fund Balance -$  -$ -$  -$
799-00000-000-35004 Reimbursement (REDCOM & 3 City SAFER ) 75,280.00$ 162,498.00$          371,698.00$        209,200.00$  
799-00000-000-35005 Other- Misc Rev (IEC funds) -$  16,900.00$            16,900.00$          -$
799-00000-000-30120 Mayacamas Supplemental Payment -$  158,000.00$          134,000.00$        (24,000.00)$
799-00000-000-31407 Mechanic Services 1,500.00$  1,500.00$              1,500.00$            -$
799-00000-000-31409 Contract for Fire Services (City of Sonoma) 5,377,311.00$             5,455,749.00$       5,942,697.00$     486,948.00$  
799-00000-000-31514 Grant Revenue 1,371,267.00$             1,371,267.00$       639,924.00$        (731,343.00)$
799-00000-000-30116 Fire Inspection & Processing Fee 55,000.00$ 55,000.00$            55,000.00$          -$
799-00000-000-31108 Special Fire Svs-State Reimbursement -$  -$ -$  -$
799-00000-000-30112 Fire Development Impact Fee -$  -$ -$  -$
Charges for Services 15,002,685.00$           15,686,225.00$     16,685,190.00$   998,965.00$  

-$
Revenue Totals 15,002,685.00$           15,686,225.00$     16,685,190.00$   998,965.00$  

Sonoma Valley Fire District

13



 Final Budget Fiscal Year 2022-2023

Account Number Description Final Budget 
2020-2021

Final Budget 
2021-2022

Final Budget 
2022-2023

Increase/(Decrease) From 
FY21-22 to FY22-23

Sonoma Valley Fire District

Expense Budget

799-68900-110-40110 Regular Employee 6,713,233.00$             7,006,800.00$       7,812,731.00$     805,931.00$  
799-68900-119-40119 District Board 5,000.00$  5,000.00$              5,000.00$            -$
799-68900-120-40120 Part Time Worker Salary 366,234.00$ 290,000.00$          310,300.00$        20,300.00$  
799-68900-130-40130 Overtime 963,950.00$ 988,050.00$          1,179,637.00$     191,587.00$  
Salary and Wages 8,048,417.00$             8,289,850.00$       9,307,668.00$     1,017,818.00$  

799-68900-115-40115 Retirement 2,286,915.00$             2,175,000.00$       2,413,500.00$     238,500.00$  
799-68900-116-40116 CalPERS  (GLE Contract) 49,000.00$ 58,028.00$            60,914.00$          2,886.00$  
799-68900-117-40417 Medicare - District Share 106,619.00$ 101,500.00$          130,405.00$        28,905.00$  
799-68900-118-40118 Income Protection 4,300.00$  4,455.00$              4,455.00$            -$
799-68900-201-40201 Employee Insurance 1,463,134.00$             1,438,730.00$       1,522,100.00$     83,370.00$  
799-68900-202-40202 Workers Compensation 587,174.00$ 688,528.00$          825,614.00$        137,086.00$  
799-68900-223-40223 Unemployment 1,000.00$  1,500.00$              1,500.00$            -$
Employee Benefits 4,498,142.00$             4,467,741.00$       4,958,488.00$     490,747.00$  

799-68900-310-50310 Legal 30,000.00$ 30,000.00$            30,000.00$          -$
799-68900-311-50311 Acctng/Audit 62,000.00$ 22,000.00$            30,000.00$          8,000.00$  
799-68900-312-50312 Recruitment 25,000.00$ 25,000.00$            25,000.00$          -$
799-68900-313-50313 Consulting 42,500.00$ 42,500.00$            35,000.00$          (7,500.00)$
799-68900-347-50347 Professional Contract Services 75,000.00$ 320,000.00$          341,454.00$        21,454.00$  
799-68900-350-50350 Other-Prof/Tech 9,500.00$  40,460.00$            35,000.00$          (5,460.00)$
Professional Services 244,000.00$                479,960.00$          496,454.00$        16,494.00$  

14



 Final Budget Fiscal Year 2022-2023

Account Number Description Final Budget 
2020-2021

Final Budget 
2021-2022

Final Budget 
2022-2023

Increase/(Decrease) From 
FY21-22 to FY22-23

Sonoma Valley Fire District

799-68900-401-60401 Utilities 90,900.00$  90,900.00$            90,900.00$          -$
799-68900-403-60403 Custodial 25,000.00$ 30,000.00$            20,000.00$          (10,000.00)$
799-68900-404-60404 Repair & Mainte 95,000.00$ 100,000.00$          100,000.00$        -$
799-68900-406-60406 Rental-Equipmen 4,000.00$  3,700.00$              3,700.00$            -$
799-68900-407-60407 Contract Services / Property Related 312,579.00$ 100,000.00$          95,000.00$          (5,000.00)$
799-68900-420-60420 Building Maintenance 55,000.00$ 60,000.00$            60,000.00$          -$
Property Services 582,479.00$                384,600.00$          369,600.00$        (15,000.00)$  

799-68900-450-60450 Dues & Subscriptions -$  20,000.00$            25,000.00$          5,000.00$  
799-68900-451-60451 Insurance Property / Liability 75,000.00$ 173,762.00$          216,690.00$        42,928.00$  
799-68900-452-60452 Communications 40,000.00$ 47,000.00$            47,000.00$          -$
799-68900-453-60453 Publications and Notices & Advertising 1,500.00$  2,000.00$              2,300.00$            300.00$  
799-68900-454-60454 Printing & Bind 1,500.00$  1,500.00$              1,500.00$            -$
799-68900-455-60455 Travel/ Mileage Reimbursement -$  5,000.00$              15,000.00$          10,000.00$  
799-68900-456-60456 Memberships 5,000.00$  -$ -$ -$
799-68900-457-60457 Training/Conferences 65,000.00$ 81,900.00$            81,900.00$          -$
799-68900-460-60460 Permit/Fees/Tax/LAFCO 3,035.00$  25,566.00$            26,000.00$          434.00$  
Operations 191,035.00$                356,728.00$          415,390.00$        58,662.00$  

799-68900-501-70501 Minor Supplies / Equipment 35,500.00$ 30,000.00$            25,000.00$          (5,000.00)$
799-68900-505-70505 Fuel 70,000.00$  95,000.00$            125,000.00$        30,000.00$  
799-68900-507-70507 Books & Periodicals 3,500.00$  3,500.00$              2,000.00$            (1,500.00)$
799-68900-508-70508 Safety Clothing / Uniforms 55,000.00$ 87,000.00$            90,000.00$          3,000.00$  
799-68900-540-70540 Rents / Leases 11,500.00$ 5,600.00$              3,000.00$            (2,600.00)$
799-68900-550-70550 Major Equipment / EMS Supplies 90,000.00$ 150,000.00$          180,000.00$        30,000.00$  

15



 Final Budget Fiscal Year 2022-2023

Account Number Description Final Budget 
2020-2021

Final Budget 
2021-2022

Final Budget 
2022-2023

Increase/(Decrease) From 
FY21-22 to FY22-23

Sonoma Valley Fire District

799-68900-551-70551 Major Equipment / Fire Supplies 40,000.00$ 60,000.00$            60,000.00$          -$
799-68900-604-70604 Machinery, Shop Tools & Equip -$  10,000.00$            10,000.00$          -$
799-68900-702-70702 Engineering Design 10,000.00$ 10,000.00$            -$ (10,000.00)$
799-68900-703-70703 Construction Materials 100,000.00$ 100,000.00$          25,000.00$          (75,000.00)$
Supplies 415,500.00$                551,100.00$          520,000.00$        (31,100.00)$  

799-68900-750-70750 Transfer to Long Term Building Reserve 125,000.00$ 125,000.00$          100,000.00$        (25,000.00)$
799-68900-760-70760 Transfer to Equipment Reserve 355,000.00$ 355,000.00$          300,000.00$        (55,000.00)$
799-68900-770-70770 Transfer to Operating Reserve 498,112.00$ 601,246.00$          167,590.00$        (433,656.00)$
Capital Assets 978,112.00$                1,081,246.00$       567,590.00$        (513,656.00)$

799-68900-606-70606 Software 20,000.00$ 50,000.00$            25,000.00$          (25,000.00)$
799-68900-607-70607 Computer Equipment / Maintenance 25,000.00$ 25,000.00$            25,000.00$          -$
Software & Computer Equipment 45,000.00$  75,000.00$            50,000.00$          (25,000.00)$  

Expense Totals 15,002,685.00$           15,686,225.00$     16,685,190.00$   998,965.00$  

16



Resolution No: 2022/2023-01 
Dated:  September 20, 2022 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA VALLEY FIRE 
DISTRICT, SONOMA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING THE 

FINAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/23  
____________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS, the 2022/23 Final Budget has been presented to the Board of 
Directors of the Sonoma Valley Fire District of Sonoma County; and 

WHEREAS, said Final Budget has been reviewed and established as of this date 
as being the Final Budget of the District, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Final Budget in the amount of 
$16,685,190.00, attached hereto, is found and determined to be the 2022/23 Final Budget of the 
District, and any interested taxpayer may review the budget at 630 Second Street West between 
the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

IN REGULAR SESSION, the foregoing resolution was introduced by Director 
__________________, who moved its adoption, seconded by Director _________________, and 
passed by the Board of Directors of the Sonoma Valley Fire District this 20th day of September 
2022, on regular roll call vote of the members of said Board: 

President Norton Aye_____     No_____  Absent_____ 
Vice President Atkinson Aye_____     No_____  Absent_____ 
Treasurer Johnson  Aye_____     No_____  Absent_____ 
Director Brady  Aye_____     No_____     Absent_____ 
Director Emery Aye_____     No_____     Absent_____ 
Director Greben Aye_____     No_____  Absent_____ 
Director Leen  Aye_____     No_____  Absent_____ 

Vote: Aye_____     No_____  Absent_____ 

WHEREUPON, the President declared the foregoing resolution adopted, and 

SO ORDERED: ATTEST: 

_______________________________ ________________________________ 
William Norton, President Maci Jerry, Clerk 

17



Sonoma Valley Fire District
Board of Directors Meeting 

Agenda Item Summary 
September 20, 2022 

Agenda Item No. Staff Contact 
10b Steve Akre, Fire Chief 

Agenda Item Title 
2022-2027 Strategic Plan 

Recommended Actions 
Approve SVFD 2022-2027 Strategic Plan. 

Executive Summary 
Receive and consider adoption of the SVFD 2022-2027 Community Driven Strategic Plan. 

Alternative Actions 
Suggest modifications or edits to finalized plan. 

Fiscal Summary – FY 22/23 
Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ District General Fund $ 
Add. Appropriations Reqd. $ Fees/Other $ 

$ Use of Fund Balance $ 
$ Contingencies $ 

Grants $ 

Total Expenditure $ Total Sources $ 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (if required) 
None 

Attachments 
1. 2022-2027 SVFD Strategic Plan

18



19



Message from the Fire Chief 
Welcome to Sonoma Valley Fire’s Third Community Driven Strategic Plan, and the first as the new Sonoma Valley 
Fire District!  This Community Driven Strategic Plan is truly the guiding document of our Department for the next 
five years. As you read through this Plan, I’d like to point out the section that describes our successes that were 
achieved in meeting the last version’s goals, from 2016 to 2022. This is a remarkable level of accomplishment made 
possible only by the dedicated and hard work of everyone in our Department, from the Board of Directors, to our 
career personnel, and volunteer staff. This has resulted in a much higher level of service and safety for our 
Communities and our personnel. We have set the expectations bar very high and we will do our very best to reach as 
many of the goals in this new Plan as possible. 

The single biggest accomplishment since 2015 was our consolidation into the new Sonoma Valley Fire District. This 
consolidation formally and permanently brought together the Valley of the Moon, Glen Ellen, and Mayacamas Fire 
Departments. As a Department we are very proud of our collective history as well as the history of each former 
Department. We are also very proud of our continued (over 20 years) partnership with the City of Sonoma, and in 
providing exceptional service to all our Communities.   

In the last six years, we have experienced as a Community, and as a service, many unprecedented challenges, from 
the 2017 Nuns Fire, to floods, PSPS events and fires again threatening our Valley in 2020, to the present COVID 
Pandemic. With the benefit of our guiding Strategic Plan, we were better able to respond, adapt and improve in many 
ways from these challenges – all with the goal of keeping our Communities safe! 

I want to thank all of our Community partners and members who took the time to assist us with developing this Plan.  
It is truly a “Community Driven” Plan and having this input and feedback is critical information for developing the 
Plan and best serving our Communities. I also want to thank the 30 dedicated members of our Department who 
spent three full days taking the input from our Community, providing their own ideas and inputs and shaping this 
Plan. Lastly, I’d like to thank the CPSE for their guidance and facilitating this process.   

I look forward to working with our Department and Community towards continuing to improve our service through 
accomplishing the goals of this Plan! 

Stephen Akre 
Fire Chief 

20



 
 

Introduction 
The Sonoma Valley Fire District (SVFD) provides an all-hazards approach in protecting the lives and property 
of the residents, businesses, and visitors of Sonoma Valley, California. SVFD is consistently working to achieve 
and/or maintain the highest level of professionalism and efficiency on behalf of those it serves, and thus, 
contracted with the Center for Public Safety Excellence® (CPSE) to prepare the Department’s path into the future 
via a “Community-Driven Strategic Plan.” The following Strategic Plan was written with a basis in the 
Commission on Fire Accreditation International’s® (CFAI) fire and emergency service accreditation model and 
is intended to guide the organization within established parameters set forth by the SVFD Board of Directors 
and staff.          

The CPSE utilized the community-driven strategic planning process to go beyond just developing a document. 
It challenged the Department’s members to critically examine paradigms, values, philosophies, beliefs, and 
desires and challenged individuals to work in the best interest of the “team.” It further provided the Department 
with an opportunity to participate in the development of their organization’s long-term direction and focus. 
Members of the organization’s Community and agency stakeholders’ groups demonstrated commitment to this 
important project and remain committed to the document’s completion and plan execution. 

 

21



SONOMA VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT | STRATEGIC PLAN 

Table of Contents 
 

Organizational Background ................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Organizational Structure ......................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Community-Driven Strategic Planning.............................................................................................................................. 2 

Process and Acknowledgements ......................................................................................................................................... 4 

Community Group Findings .................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Community Priorities ..........................................................................................................................................................5 

Agency Stakeholder Group Findings .................................................................................................................................. 6 

Mission ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Values ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Programs and Services ............................................................................................................................................................. 8 

SWOT Analysis ............................................................................................................................................................................ 9 

Critical Issues and Service Gaps ............................................................................................................................................ 9 

Strategic Initiatives ................................................................................................................................................................. 10 

Goals and Objectives ............................................................................................................................................................. 10 

Vision ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

Performance Measurement ................................................................................................................................................ 21 

The Success of the Strategic Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 22 

Glossary of Terms, Acronyms, and Initialisms............................................................................................................... 23 

Appendix 1 – Community Input ........................................................................................................................................ 25 

Community Expectations ............................................................................................................................................... 25 

Areas of Community Concern ...................................................................................................................................... 27 

Positive Community Feedback .................................................................................................................................... 30 

Other Thoughts and Comments .................................................................................................................................. 33 

Appendix 2 - SWOT ................................................................................................................................................................ 35 

Strengths .............................................................................................................................................................................. 35 

Weaknesses ......................................................................................................................................................................... 36 

Opportunities ..................................................................................................................................................................... 37 

Threats................................................................................................................................................................................... 38 

Appendix 3 - Critical and Service Gap Issues Identified by Agency Stakeholders .......................................... 39 

 

22



Organizational Background 

Sonoma Valley is located in the southeastern portion of Sonoma County, centrally located in the North Bay region 
of California. Tourism and agriculture drive the economy, and Sonoma is considered the birthplace of California’s 
wine industry. In 2002 the City of Sonoma and the Valley and the Moon Fire Protection District began operating 
under a Joint Powers Agreement as the Sonoma Valley Fire and Rescue Authority. The Sonoma Valley Fire District 
(SVFD) was formed on July 1, 2020, by consolidating the Valley of the Moon and Glen Ellen Fire Districts and the 
Mayacamas Volunteer Fire Company 
service area.  

Today the Sonoma Valley Fire District 
provides all-hazards fire, rescue, and 
paramedic level emergency medical 
services to the communities of Agua 
Caliente, Boyes Hot Springs, City of 
Sonoma, Diamond-A, El Verano, 
Fetters Hot Springs, Glen Ellen, 
Mayacamas, Temelec, and Seven Flags.  

The Sonoma Valley Fire District is 
governed by a seven-member Board of 
Directors, elected at large by their constituents, and each serving a four-year term. The Fire Chief oversees the 
district’s general operations under the Board of Directors’ policy direction, which serves an area of approximately 
74 square miles with a resident population of roughly 48,000. The district includes extensive wildland-urban 
interface (WUI) areas, large single-family homes, multi-family residential complexes, several hotels, a hospital, 
and a historic downtown Plaza. The Sonoma Valley Fire District also provides ambulance service to an additional 
100 square miles of the greater Sonoma Valley. 

The Sonoma Valley Fire District is a combination agency that maintains four career-staffed fire stations, three 
volunteer stations, an administrative office, and a maintenance facility. SVFD’s daily staffing includes four 
paramedic engines, two advanced life support ambulances, and a Battalion Chief. In addition, this staffing is 
enhanced through a cadre of dedicated volunteer firefighters and an assortment of specialized equipment, 
including a ladder truck, seven wildland engines, two rescues, three water tenders, and three additional engines 
including a California Office of Emergency Services fire engine 

The Sonoma Valley Fire District also provides staffing for one shift for the Eldridge Fire Department as part of a 
contract for services agreement with the State of California Department of General Services. 

  

23



Organizational Structure 

Community-Driven Strategic Planning 

For many successful organizations, the community’s voice drives its operations and charts the course for its future. 
A community-driven emergency service organization seeks to gather and utilize the needs and expectations of its 
community in the development and improvement of the services provided. A community-driven strategic 
planning process was used to develop this Strategic Plan to ensure that the community remains a focus of the 
organization’s direction.  

A Strategic Plan is a living management tool that provides short-term direction, builds a shared vision, documents 
goals and objectives, and optimizes the use of resources. Effective strategic planning benefits from a consistent 
and cohesively structured process employed across all levels of the organization. Planning is a continuous process 
and while plans can be developed regularly, it is the process of planning that is important, not the publication of 
the plan itself. Most importantly, strategic planning can be an opportunity to unify the management, employees, 
and stakeholders through a shared understanding of where the organization is going, how everyone involved can 
work toward that common purpose, and how progression and success will be measured.     

24



Community Stakeholders Work Session 

The Community–Driven Strategic Planning Process Outline  

1. Define the programs provided to the community.

2. Establish the community’s service program priorities and expectations of the organization.

3. Identify any concerns the community may have about the organization and aspects of the organization
that the community views positively.

4. Revisit the mission statement, giving careful attention to the current services and programs and those
which logically can be provided in the future.

5. Revisit the values of the organization’s membership.

6. Identify the internal strengths and weaknesses of the organization.

7. Identify areas of opportunity or potential threats to the organization.

8. Identify the organization’s critical issues and service gaps.

9. Determine strategic initiatives for organizational improvement.

10. Establish a realistic goal and objectives for each initiative.

11. Identify implementation tasks for the accomplishment of each objective.

12. Determine the vision of the future.

13. Develop organizational and community commitment to accomplishing the plan.

25



Process and Acknowledgements

The (CPSE) acknowledges and thanks the community and agency stakeholders for their participation and input 
in this community-driven strategic planning process. The CPSE also recognizes Fire Chief Steve Akre and the 
team of professionals that participated for their leadership and commitment to this process.   

Development of this Strategic Plan took place in May 2022, beginning with meetings hosted by a representative 
from the CPSE for members of the community (as named in the following table). The department identified 
community stakeholders to ensure broad representation. The community stakeholders were comprised of local 
Fire Chiefs, members of Fire District Boards, local community groups, representatives of county and state leaders, 
as well as those  who reside or work within the Sonoma Valley Fire District’s coverage area, and some who were 
recipients of SVFD’s service(s). 

Sonoma Valley Fire District Community Stakeholders 

Matt Atkinson Chad Costa Dawn Holman Mayacamas Olds 

Daren Bellach Gina Cuclis Chase Hunter Hannah Perot 

Justin Benguerel Josh Cutler Robert Johnson Greg Piccinini 

Mark Bodenhamer Mark Emery Celia Kruse De La Rosa Robert Pickett 

Brian Brady Rabbi Steve Finley Dawn Kuwahara Carol Pigoni 

Mark Bramfitt Ken Finn Tricia Ladoucer Maricarmen Reyes 

Dana Bravo Karina Garcia Scott McKinnon Tracey Salcedo 

Cathy Capriola Jennifer Gray Thompson Ray Mulas Bob Uboldi 

Karen Collins Rebecca Hermosillo Bill Norton Jenny Yankovich 

James Cooper Barry Hill 

Community Stakeholders Work Session 

26



Community Group Findings 

A key element of the Sonoma Valley Fire District’s organizational philosophy is having a high level of commitment 
to the community and recognizing the importance of community satisfaction. Thus, the department invited 
community representatives to provide feedback on services provided by the department. Respondents were asked 
to prioritize programs and services provided by the department. Additionally, input was gathered during the 
meeting that revolved around community expectations and concerns (prioritized) and positive and other 
comments about the organization. Specific findings of the community stakeholders are provided in the appendix 
of this document. The agency stakeholders utilized the full feedback from the community stakeholders in 
understanding the current challenges encountered within the organization. Additionally, the community 
stakeholders’ feedback provided a process 
to ensure alignment with the work 
completed on the organizational mission, 
values, vision, and goals for improvement. 

Community Priorities 

To best dedicate time, energy, and resources to services most desired by its community, the Sonoma Valley Fire 
District needs to understand what the customers consider to be their priorities. With that, the community 
stakeholders were asked to prioritize the programs offered by the department through a process of direct 
comparison. The results were as follows: 

Programs Ranking Score 

Fire Suppression 1 272 

Emergency Medical Services 2 263 

Wildland Fire Fighting 3 233 

Technical Rescue 4 160 

Emergency Preparedness and Management 5 147 

Vegetation Management/Fuels Reduction 6 142 

Fire Prevention 7 121 

Fire Investigation, Origin, and Cause 8 106 

Hazardous Materials Mitigation 9 102 

Public Education 10 71 

See Appendix 1 for a complete list of the community findings, including expectations, areas of concern, positive 
feedback, and other thoughts and comments.  

Community Stakeholders Work Session 

27



Agency Stakeholder Group Findings

The agency stakeholder work sessions were conducted over three days. These sessions served to discuss the 
organization’s approach to community-driven strategic planning, focusing on the department’s mission, values, 
core programs, and support services. Additionally, focus was given to the organization’s perceived strengths, 
weaknesses, opportunities, and threats. The work sessions involved participation by a stakeholder group 
representing a broad cross-section of the department, as named and pictured below. 

Sonoma Valley Fire District Agency Stakeholders 

Steve Akre Dave Duncan Maci Jerry Joe Neely 

Spencer Andreis Nathan Dunn Gary Johnson Bob Norrbom 

Laura Banuelos Dustin Garcia Rob Kingsford Justin Semenero 

Joe Boldt Joe Gilmore Sean Lacy Trevor Smith 

Jason Campbell Ismael Gonzalez Chris Landry Brian Sweet 

Brian Cyr Bill Harper Luke Loftus Shane Tinker 

Tom Deely Jennifer Jason Bob Molesworth Tim Wanger 

Chris Derner Mark Jennings Mike Montgomery 

Agency Stakeholders 

28



Mission

The mission provides an internal aspect of the existence of an organization and, to a degree, an empowering 
consideration for all department members. The purpose of the mission is to answer the questions: 

Who are we?               Why do we exist?               What do we do?               Why do we do it?               For whom? 

A workgroup met to revisit the existing mission and, after ensuring it answered the questions, the following 
mission statement was created, discussed, and accepted by the entire group:    

The Sonoma Valley Fire District exists to protect the quality of life for present and 
future generations through collaboration with our community, compassionate service, 

and an atmosphere that encourages innovation, professionalism, and diversity. 

Values

Values embraced by all members of an organization are extremely important, as they recognize the features that 
make up the personality and culture of the organization. A workgroup met to revisit the existing values and 
proposed a revision that was discussed, enhanced further, and agreed upon by the entire group:  

Compassion: An emphasis on empathy and kindness in all interactions. 

Professionalism: The competence and skills expected to ensure efficient service. 

Adaptability: Innovative personnel that adapt to evolving environments to provide the highest level 

of service. 

Loyalty: An allegiance to a diverse community, agency, and governing body. 

Sustainability: The ability to maintain a competent workforce for our community and family-

oriented work environment. 

Accountability: The responsibility to meet and exceed the needs of our community and members. 

The mission and values are the foundation of this organization. Thus, every effort will be made to keep these 
current and meaningful to guide the individuals who make up the Sonoma Valley Fire District to accomplish the 
goals, objectives, and day-to-day tasks. 

29



Programs and Services 

To ensure a deeper focus exists in determining issues and gaps within an organization, there must be a delineation 
between core programs and supporting services. Core programs are those core deliverables provided by the 
department. Supporting services are all the internal and external programs and services that help the SVFD deliver 
its core programs.  

The importance of understanding the difference is that issues and gaps may exist in core programs or supporting 
services, and the department’s strategic approach may bring forth different considerations for improvement. 
Additionally, supporting services may be internal or external to the organization and require an understanding of 
how the difference impacts their location within the analysis of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats 
if identified. Finally, the agency stakeholders must understand that many local, state, and national services support 
its delivery of the identified core programs. 

Through a facilitated brainstorming session, the agency stakeholders agreed upon the core programs provided to 
the community and many of the supporting services that support these programs. This session sought 
understanding of the differences and the important key elements of the delineation.  

 
Agency Stakeholders Work Session 

  

30



SWOT Analysis 

Through a SWOT analysis (strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats), an organization candidly identifies 
its positive and negative attributes. The SWOT analysis also provides an opportunity for an organization to 
evaluate its operating environment for areas in which it can capitalize and those that pose a danger. Agency 
stakeholders participated in this activity to record SVFD’s strengths and weaknesses and the possible opportunities 
and potential threats. Information gathered through this analysis assisted the agency in finding its broader critical 
issues and service gaps.  

Appendix 2 consists of the SWOT data and analysis collected by the agency stakeholders.  

 
Agency Stakeholders Work Session 

Critical Issues and Service Gaps 

Following the identification and review of the department’s SWOT, two separate groups of agency stakeholders 
met to identify themes as primary critical issues and service gaps (found in Appendix 3). The stakeholders’ critical 
issues and services gaps provided further guidance toward identifying the strategic initiatives, which ultimately 
led to the development of goals, objectives, critical tasks, and timelines.  

  

31



Strategic Initiatives 

Based upon all previously captured information and the determination of critical issues and service gaps, the 
following strategic initiatives were identified as the foundation for developing goals and objectives. 

Workforce Regional Consolidation Training 

Capital Assets and Infrastructure  Community Outreach and Collaboration  

Goals and Objectives 

To continuously achieve the mission of the Sonoma Valley Fire District, realistic goals and objectives with 
timelines for completion must be established. These will enhance strengths, address identified weaknesses, provide 
a clear direction, and address the community’s concerns. These should become a focus of the department’s efforts, 
as they will direct the organization to its desired future while reducing the obstacles and distractions along the 
way. Leadership-established workgroups should meet and manage progress toward accomplishing these goals and 
objectives and adjust timelines as needs and the environment change. Regular reports of progress and changes 
should be shared with the SVFD’s leadership.  

Goal 1 
Improve and maintain facilities, equipment, and technology to enable personnel to 
safely and efficiently deliver exceptional service to the community.  

 

Objective 1A Identify and implement critical facility improvements for current and future needs. 

Timeframe 3 years Assigned to:   

Critical 
Tasks 

 Ensure completion of the seismic retrofit of SVFD Station 5. 
 Identify, evaluate, and analyze potential sites for the new SVFD Station 2. 
 Evaluate existing building plans for adequacy of identified SVFD Station 2 needs. 
 Seek SVFD Board approval, funding, and project manager for updated Station 2 plan 

implementation. 
 Identify operational needs for fleet maintenance shop expansion. 
 Evaluate repurposing of current district property or identify other potential sites for 

shop expansion. 
 Evaluate additional needs for existing facilities and develop mitigation plans as required. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

32



Objective 1B 
Implement the improvements and replacements needed to ensure safe and efficient 
operations of the fleet. 

Timeframe 12 months Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Analyze the current vehicle replacement schedule and revise as necessary on an annual 
basis. 

 Analyze adequacy of the current fleet and adjust as needed. 
 Seek funding and approval for additional fleet maintenance workforce if indicated. 
 Review and revise as needed. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 

Objective 1C Provide and maintain necessary tools and equipment to allow for effective operations. 

Timeframe 12 months Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Evaluate current and future deficiencies in equipment. 
 Seek funding opportunities and resolve identified deficiencies. 
 Review and revise as needed. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 

Objective 1D 
Identify and implement upgrades to Information Technology (IT) equipment and 
infrastructure. 

Timeframe 2 years Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Upgrade and consolidate current IT infrastructure in fleet and facilities (servers, radios, 
computers, phones, iPad, etc.). 

 Identify opportunities for increased interoperability as technology changes. 
 Ensure completion of the online payment portal for fee collection to maximize recovery. 
 Review and revise as needed. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 
 
  

33



Goal 2 
Develop a comprehensive and robust workforce plan that improves staffing, 
recruitment, retention, and succession planning to address the community’s ever-
changing needs and optimize the use of human resources within the organization. 

 

Objective 2A 
Continue to improve recruitment and retention practices to attract and retain the highest 
quality workforce. 

Timeframe 12-18 months Assigned to:   

Critical 
Tasks 

 Identify new recruitment opportunities for youth, part-time, and full-time personnel. 
 Develop recruitment marketing material for youth, part-time, and full-time personnel. 
 Survey all personnel on desired opportunities. 
 Evaluate survey results, adjust strategies, and implement changes. 
 Develop a plan to recruit community-based support volunteers. 
 Review recruitment and retention practices on an annual basis. 
 Revise plans as needed. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 

Objective 2B 
Promote physical, mental, and emotional wellbeing among members to enhance their 
quality of life throughout their careers and into retirement. 

Timeframe 2 years Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Identify current needs and opportunities to improve physical, mental, and emotional 
wellbeing. 

 Research cutting-edge programs for cancer prevention. 
 Develop continuing education plan for first responder resiliency. 
 Create a report, analyze the results of the completed research, and provide 

recommendations. 
 Implement recommendations based on the report. 
 Review and implement changes and revise on an annual basis. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

  

34



Objective 2C Develop a staffing plan to address the needs of the growing community and department. 

Timeframe 12 months Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Identify operational staffing needs based on analysis of incident data and standards. 
 Develop a plan based on identified staffing needs or gaps. 
 Explore additional funding opportunities to support any indicated staffing needs. 
 Identify support services staffing needs. 
 Develop a plan based on identified staffing needs. 
 Explore funding and cost recovery opportunities to support identified needs of support 

staff. 
 Continue to seek opportunities to increase bilingual staff. 
 Review staffing needs on an annual basis. 
 Revise needs on an annual basis 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 
 
  

35



Goal 3 
Improve external collaboration and community outreach to continue to provide 
exceptional service delivery. 

 

Objective 3A 
Improve social media engagement, content, and frequency to ensure continued public 
awareness. 

Timeframe 6 months and ongoing Assigned to:   

Critical 
Tasks 

 Utilizing the existing social media cadre, evaluate current social media practices and 
identify areas for improvement. 

 Research current and best practices for program management utilizing subject matter 
experts. 

 Develop and implement strategies to meet the needs and goals of the organization. 
 Evaluate, review, and monitor amended social media program performance quarterly. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 

Objective 3B 
Diversify and broaden our community outreach to provide access and information to all 
cross-sections of our community. 

Timeframe 6 months and ongoing Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Research and identify local community groups and stakeholders. 
 Reach out to the identified community groups and stakeholders for opportunities to 

improve communication and relationships. 
 Engage with stakeholders to collaborate and exchange information and ideas. 
 Create and implement a plan to increase participation and events. 
 Develop evaluation tools to identify the effectiveness of the information, ideas, and 

events. 
 Analyze and review any necessary improvements after events and annually. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

  

36



Objective 3C 
Continue to seek opportunities to collaborate with local and regional stakeholders to 
cultivate and unify services for a shared benefit. 

Timeframe 12 months and ongoing Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Research and identify local and regional stakeholders. 
 Reach out to the identified stakeholders, and assess for mutual needs. 
 Coordinate with stakeholders to collaborate and exchange information and ideas. 
 Devise and implement a plan to enhance services and share resources. 
 Analyze and review the process to ensure effectiveness and sustainability annually. 
 Revise any areas of concern. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 

Objective 3D 
Integrate and cooperate with entities participating in wildfire preparedness and 
prevention to enhance community and firefighter safety. 

Timeframe 12 months and ongoing Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Identify entities participating in wildfire preparedness and prevention to enhance 
community and firefighter safety. 

 Establish lines of communication with entities to identify opportunities for integration. 
 Develop and implement identified opportunities. 
 Analyze and review the process at least annually to ensure effectiveness and 

sustainability. 
 Modify as necessary. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 
 
  

37



Goal 4 
Enhance the comprehensive training program to continually provide high-level 
service delivery. 

 

Objective 4A Identify and deliver annual training to meet or exceed mandated standards. 

Timeframe 6 months and ongoing Assigned to:   

Critical 
Tasks 

 Identify local, state, and federally mandated training standards. 
 Review current training to ensure compliance. 
 Update any training programs found to not be in compliance. 
 Review mandated standards and training programs to ensure ongoing compliance. 
 Revise the program as needed. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 

Objective 4B 
Prioritize and improve career development planning and programs to address succession 
needs for individuals and the agency. 

Timeframe 12-18 months and ongoing Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Review the career development guide to ensure it meets the department’s needs and 
update as necessary. 

 Survey employees on current career development needs. 
 Analyze employees’ knowledge, skills, abilities, and interests to address department 

needs. 
 Identify opportunities for improvement. 
 Identify hard-to-fill positions and create opportunities for line personnel to develop 

interests and skills. 
 Seek internal and external training opportunities for interpersonal and supervisory skills 

development. 
 Expand mentorship program to include volunteer and career staff. 
 Seek opportunities to re-establish the cadet/explorer program. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

  

38



Objective 4C 
Evaluate current training practices and implement new standards to ensure operations are 
performed safely and effectively. 

Timeframe 9-12 months and ongoing Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Identify current deficiencies in the onboarding process, task book oversight, and engine 
company standards. 

 Clearly identify expectations for the task book process and probationary manuals. 
 Review and revise current onboarding and probationary manuals. 
 Prioritize the consistency of training and company standards.  
 Monitor progress to ensure uniformity. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 

Objective 4D 
Pursue and develop collaborative training efforts to enhance service delivery among 
regional partners. 

Timeframe 12-18 months and ongoing Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Identify opportunities for regional training collaboration. 
 Analyze the effectiveness of current regional training. 
 Pursue opportunities to establish Region 3 explorer/cadet program. 
 Coordinate training with regional partners. 
 Participate in scheduled regional training. 
 Review effectiveness of regional training annually. 
 Revise training based on current and future needs. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 
  

39



Goal 5 
Continue to explore regional consolidation opportunities of fire, EMS, and 
dispatch to deliver improved services to the constituents of the Sonoma Valley. 

 

Objective 5A 
Continue to engage with regional stakeholders regarding proposed consolidation 
opportunities. 

Timeframe Ongoing Assigned to:   

Critical 
Tasks 

 Foster positive relationships by maintaining regular attendance at board of supervisors, 
regional, and operational area meetings. 

 Identify opportunities that enhance service delivery to the Sonoma Valley. 
 Disseminate positive opportunities for enhanced service to stakeholders. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 

Objective 5B 
Research benefits and feasibility of proposed consolidation with regional stakeholders and 
governing bodies. 

Timeframe 3-9 months Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Create ad hoc committees to research the benefits and feasibility of consolidation. 
 Evaluate research to ensure findings provide a desirable outcome for stakeholders and 

constituents. 
 Formulate recommendations for presentation. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 

Objective 5C Identify and advise governing bodies on the potential benefits of consolidation. 

Timeframe 18-24 months Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Present recommendations to the governing body and gain approval. 
 Initiate Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) review process to include 

Municipal Services Review (MSR) of affected areas. 
 Present LAFCO review to County Board of Supervisors for approval. 

Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

  

40



Objective 5D 
Develop an implementation plan to provide the governing bodies information on 
consolidation, including funding and sustainability. 

Timeframe 6-12 months Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Initiate community outreach to local stakeholders, including open public forum 
meetings and messaging. 

 Create an implementation plan with input and communication among management, 
labor, and involved stakeholders. 

 Establish a review process to justify recommended funding and sustainability of the 
plan. 

 Finalize and approve the implementation plan. 
Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

 

Objective 5E Implement the approved plan with continuous review for efficiency and effectiveness. 

Timeframe 3 months and ongoing Assigned to:  

Critical 
Tasks 

 Establish a start date for the plan. 
 Merge Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), Standard Operating Guideline SOG, 

and training standards. 
 Provide continuous review for efficiency and effectiveness through transparent 

communication with all stakeholders. 
Funding 
Estimate 

Capital Costs:  
Personnel Costs:  

Consumable Costs:  
Contract Services Costs:  

  

41



  

42



Vision 

On the final day of the process, the CPSE presented a Strategic Plan vision of where the organization will be in the 
future if the Strategic Plan is accomplished. This is not to override the department’s global vision but to confirm 
the futurity of the work that the agency stakeholders designed. This vision is intended as a target of excellence to 
strive toward and provides a basis for its goals and objectives.   

The Sonoma Valley Fire District: A professional fire service organization committed 
to compassionate service delivery and an example of professionalism and 
accountability in the community.  

Our vision is that, by 2027, we will have clearly demonstrated our loyal and 
unwavering commitment to our citizens by way of superb community outreach and 
collaboration, and consideration for further regional consolidation. This service will 
be provided by an adaptable workforce supported by a world-class training program 
designed to ensure long-term sustainability in the community. Efficacies in all of our 
processes will be realized by an enhanced capital asset and infrastructure program 
designed to improve the quality of life of those who serve within this organization. 

We endeavor to live our purpose and values as we deliver our mission, accomplish our 
goals, and bring this vision to fruition. 

Performance Measurement 

To assess and ensure that an organization is delivering on the promises made in its Strategic Plan, leaders must 
determine performance measures for which they are fully accountable. As output measurement can be 
challenging, the organization must assess progress toward achieving improved output. Organizations must further 
be prepared to revisit and revise their goals, objectives, and performance measures to keep up with 
accomplishments and environmental changes.  

  

43



Performance measurement data will be implemented and integrated to establish that the department’s Strategic 
Plan achieves results. An integrated process, known as “Managing for Results,” will be utilized, which is based 
upon: 

● The identification of strategic goals and objectives; 

● The determination of resources necessary to achieve them; 

● The analysis and evaluation of performance data; and 

● The use of that data to drive continuous improvement in the organization. 

A “family of measures” typically utilized to indicate and measure performance includes: 

● Inputs - Value of resource used to produce an output. 

● Outputs – Quantifiable units produced which are activity-oriented and measurable. 

● Efficiency - Inputs used per output (or outputs per input). 

● Service Quality - The degree to which customers are satisfied with a program or how accurately or timely 
service is provided. 

● Outcome - Qualitative consequences associated with a program/service, i.e., the ultimate benefit to the 
customer. Focused on the “why” of providing a service. 

The Success of the Strategic Plan 

The department has approached its desire to develop and implement a Strategic Plan by asking for and receiving 
input from the community and organization members during the development stage of the planning process. To 
develop this plan, the department used professional guidance to conduct a community-driven strategic planning 
process. The success of this Strategic Plan will depend not only on the implementation of the goals and related 
objectives but on support from the Fire District Board of Directors’ policy direction, the members of the 
organization, and the community at large.  

Provided the community-driven strategic planning process is kept dynamic and supported by effective leadership 
and active participation, it will be a considerable opportunity to unify agency and community stakeholders. This 
can be accomplished through a jointly developed understanding of organizational direction, focusing on all vested 
parties working to achieve the mission, goals, and vision. Further consideration must be made on how the 
organization will measure and be accountable for its progress and successes. 

  

  

44



Glossary of Terms, Acronyms, and Initialisms 

Accreditation A process by which an association or agency evaluates and recognizes a program of study or 
an institution as meeting certain predetermined standards or qualifications. It applies only to 
institutions or agencies and their programs of study or their services. Accreditation ensures a 
basic level of quality in the services received from an agency.  

CFAI Commission on Fire Accreditation International 

CPSE Center for Public Safety Excellence 

Customer(s) The person or group who establishes the requirement of a process and receives or uses the 
outputs of that process; or the person or entity directly served by the department or agency.  

Efficiency A performance indication where inputs are measured per unit of output (or vice versa). 

EMS Emergency Medical Services 

Environment Circumstances and conditions that interact with and affect an organization. These can 
include economic, political, cultural, and physical conditions inside or outside the 
organization’s boundaries.  

Input A performance indication where the value of resources is used to produce an output. 

LAFCO Local Agency Formation Commission 

Mission  An enduring statement of purpose; the organization’s reason for existence. Describes what 
the organization does, for whom it does it, and how. 

MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

MSR Municipal Services Review 

Outcome  A performance indication where qualitative consequences are associated with a 
program/service, i.e., the ultimate benefit to the customer. 

Output  A performance indication where a quality or number of units produced is identified. 

SDC Sonoma Developmental Center 

SOG Standard Operating Guideline 

Stakeholder  Any person, group, or organization that can place a claim on, or influence the organization’s 
resources or outputs, is affected by those outputs, or has an interest in or expectation of the 
organization.   

Strategic Goal  A broad target that defines how the agency will carry out its mission over a specific period. 
An aim. The final result of an action. Something to accomplish in assisting the agency in 
moving forward. 

45



Strategic Objective A specific, measurable accomplishment required to realize the successful completion of a 
strategic goal.   

Strategic Plan A long-range planning document defines the agency’s mission and broadly identifies how it 
will be accomplished, and provides the framework for more detailed annual and operational 
plans.  

Strategic Planning The continuous and systematic process whereby guiding members of an organization make 
decisions about its future, develop procedures and operations to achieve that future, and 
determine how success is measured. 

Strategy A description of how a strategic objective will be achieved. A possibility. A plan or 
methodology for achieving a goal.  

SWOT Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats 

Vision An idealized view of a desirable and potentially achievable future state - where or what an 
organization would like to be in the future.  

WUI Wildland Urban Interface 

  

46



Appendix 1 – Community Input 

Community Expectations 

Understanding what the community expects of its fire service organization is critically important to developing a 
long-range perspective. With this knowledge, internal emphasis may need to be changed or bolstered to fulfill the 
community’s needs. 

Respondents were asked to list, in priority order, up to five subjects relative to their expectations for the Sonoma 
Valley Fire District. Responses were then analyzed for themes and weighted. The weighting of the prioritized 
responses was as follows: if it was the respondent’s first entry, it received five weighted points. Weighting gradually 
decreased so that if it was the respondent’s fifth entry, it received one weighted point. The weighted themes were 
then sorted from the highest cumulative weight to the lowest cumulative weight and listed below. The numbers in 
the parentheses are the cumulative weighted value that correlated with the theme identified. While the themes are 
listed in prioritized, weighted order, all responses were important in the planning process. The following are the 
expectation responses of the community stakeholders (in priority order):   

1. Fast response times. Response times. Quick response. Ability to respond in a timely fashion. Response times 
within standard protocols. Response times outside of city of Sonoma limits. Timely emergency response. (92) 

2. Continue to provide top-quality training to the department. Qualified professional personnel. Competency. 
Provide the highest level of response based on most current professional standards and training. Professional 
skills needed to address responses. Provide training for firefighters, remain up to date on community needs 
and possible fire dangers. Maintain a well-trained, properly fit, and a respectful staff. (59) 

3. Leadership in emergency response and preparedness. Professional behavior during crisis. Good moral 
behavior outside of the work time. Leadership role in keeping our community safe. Professionalism. Empathy 
of first responders and leadership. Ability to respond in a professional manner. Honesty, integrity, and 
courtesy in all aspects by all. Project positive public image. (43) 

4. To actively participate in emergency response planning with other agencies and, in particular, evacuation 
planning. Collaboration with community partners. Collaboration/coordination - a priority. Coordinate with 
other public safety agencies. Community support. That Sonoma Valley fire department will secure and make 
arrangements for additional resources for massive emergencies. Positive, professional relationship with co-
operators. (41) 

5. Community outreach and engagement. Educate the public about prevention and response. Focus on 
prevention of fires with community education. Public education wildfire risk. Public engagement: contribute 
and be part of the community. Community presence. Education - schools, events, etc. Educate the community 
on fires. (35) 

6. Equipment operating and in service. Equipment - having and also having access to needed equipment. Ensure 
all equipment remains up to date or state of the art (cutting edge). Leading-edge resources on the ground and 
in the air. That staff of the Sonoma Valley fire department will have the most modern and advanced 
equipment, both PPE and other things to do their job effectively. (25) 

47



7. Best level of care. Continue top-quality services for our community. Provide all risk services in a proficient, 
well-organized, highly trained courteous manner. Efficient, prepared response to emergencies. (23) 

8. That Sonoma Valley Fire department will have the staffing and equipment and equipment to handle most 
emergencies. Meet NFPA 1710 standards for response. Fully staffed. That the fire department has adequate 
staffing and equipment to provide services to the community. (22) 

9. Public safety: extinguish fire. Put out fires. Fire safety for Sonoma Valley. (15) 

10. The feel of “If I call, they will come.” Shows up to emergency situations. The fire department will be there 
when I need them. (11) 

11. Clear concise communication. Communication - clear and understood. Keep the community informed 
during emergencies. (10) 

12. Evaluation of wildfire risks and management of same. Wildfire resiliency. Have a plan for the community in 
the case of another major wildfire. Prepare, adapt and lead wildfire organizational response and new wildfire 
community programs. (10) 

13. Robust prevention program. Fire prevention and preparedness. Fire Marshal - codes, plan checks, inspections. 
Community fire prevention. (9) 

14. Emergency medical assistance. Public service - ambulance. Respond to medical calls. (8) 

15. At least one bilingual staff per shift. Have at least one bilingual staff per shift at each fire station. (8) 

16. Fiscal responsibility. Provide all services within budget and with fiscal oversight. Fiscal management to aid 
future decisions. (7) 

17. To provide ALS/paramedic services proficiently. (5) 

18. Extinguishment of structure and wildfires within service area. (5) 

19. Take preventative steps to reduce the number of fires in our community. Take action to prevent fires. (5) 

20. Don’t let homes burn. (5) 

21. Responsiveness to emergencies, threats, public service requests, EMS. (5) 

22. Continued growth keeping up with the communities. (5) 

23. Establish and maintain a succession plan for the department. (4) 

24. Continue to explore opportunities for fire service consolidation within the SVFD sphere of influence. (4) 

25. Limit the spread and impact of fires. (4) 

26. Continued growth of EMS. (4) 

27. Bedside manner - interpersonal skills with patients. (3) 

28. Improve standards of coverage for ambulances. (3) 

29. Flood response. (3) 

30. Local knowledge (area, business, etc.). Familiar with the community and the people they serve. (3) 

48



31. Respected/trusted fire chief (yes). (3) 

32. Proper notification if evacuating. (3) 

33. Monitor the valley for fires. (3) 

34. Firefighter health and safety. (3) 

35. That the fire department serves as a hub for the entire community. (3) 

36. Accessibility. (2) 

37. Improve ambulance response times. (2) 

38. Teamwork. (2) 

39. Rescues. (2) 

40. Save cats. (2) 

41. Resilient workforce. (1) 

42. Friends of the community on/off the job. (1) 

43. Sustainability. (1) 

44. The city/county realizes the need for a strong and healthy agency and tries not to make cuts when times are 
tough. (1) 

45. Beat the police in any sporting activities. (1) 

Areas of Community Concern 

The planning process would be incomplete without an expression from the community stakeholders regarding 
concerns about the organization. Some areas of concern may be a weakness within the delivery system, while some 
weaknesses may also be misperceptions based upon a lack of information, understanding, or incorrect 
information.  

Respondents were asked to list, in priority order, up to five concerns they have about or for the department. 
Responses were then analyzed for themes and weighted. The weighting of the prioritized concerns was as follows: 
if it was the respondent’s first entry, it received five weighted points. Weighting gradually decreased so that if it 
was the respondent’s fifth entry, it received one weighted point. The weighted themes were then sorted from the 
highest cumulative weight to the lowest cumulative weight and listed below. The numbers in the parentheses are 
the cumulative weighted value that correlated with the theme identified. While the themes are listed in prioritized, 
weighted order, all responses were important in the planning process. The following are the concerns of the 
community stakeholders prioritized and weighted accordingly (verbatim, in priority order):   

1. Politics and funding. Continued money and abundant funding. Funding. Is your debt leading the way in 
training and equipment? Financial stability for the future. Local, state, and federal funding. Continuing to 
meet the challenges of the future with new demands and requirements, especially without funding. Funding 
won’t always be available for all of SVFD’s needs. (82) 

49



2. Staffing and resources for an uncertain future. Do we have what is needed for an uncertain future?  Are there 
currently enough fire stations for the area of responsibility? Sufficient ambulance coverage? Can the 
community outgrow the fire department? Staffing, do you have enough people to be fresh when something 
big happens or many things happen at once? (35) 

3. Recruitment of volunteers in outlying areas. Funding for recruitment. Staff recruitment and retention. The 
ability to recruit and retain qualified employees. Volunteer recruitment. Ability to compete with other larger 
Bay area departments for firefighters. (32) 

4. Do they have appropriate number of staff on duty around the clock? Staffing: Are you facing that challenge? 
Maintain personnel. Retaining personnel. Are staffing levels appropriate for the area and population served? 
Future and current staffing levels.  (27) 

5. Health and wellness of workforce with difficult past years. Mental and physical health of staff and leadership. 
Physical, mental, and emotional wellbeing of our firefighters. How are they being taken care of? Does the fire 
department have mental health support? Both for staff and handling calls of this nature. (26) 

6. Are they receiving training to be understanding and compassionate of all community members: i.e., Latino, 
elderly, mentally ill, homeless, etc.? Is the fire department diverse enough in its personnel (bilingual)? Not 
enough bi-lingual staff. Does the fire department have good working relationships with those who care for the 
homeless?  Multilingual staff. Homeless outreach (starting fires). (25) 

7. Spread of flammable invasive species (Scotch Broom). Vegetation management/spread of wildfire. Forest 
management. Lots of brush on private property. Home hardening for renters and landlords (need an 
incentive). (19) 

8. Increase in wildland fires. Resources to meet the wildland fire threat. Can you really fight a wildland fire in 
the WUI-what do you need to do that? How do the people that live in the WUI stay safe? Can the fire 
department stay flexible enough to incorporate new WUI building methods and firefighting techniques as 
they emerge over the next five years? (19) 

9. Do they have sufficient, up-to-date equipment and vehicles? Equipment- do you have the tools to do your job? 
Is equipment up-to-date and ready for tomorrow’s challenges? (15) 

10. Ability for firefighters to find affordable housing in Sonoma Valley. Cost of living in Sonoma Valley (ability 
to attract, retain and promote employees in the area). Assist with the ability of staff to live in the community. 
(15) 

11. Narrow roads-can a firetruck navigate some of our roads. Lack of enforcement on parking laws (signs) in the 
Springs on narrow streets. (13) 

12. Adapt to climate change. Water supply won’t be available due to drought. Water supplies. (11) 

13. Mandated but underfunded federal and state rules applicable to the fire service. State intervention on finances 
and budgetary priorities. Does SVFD have enough support by state and local government? (10) 

14. Are our firefighters supported enough in the community? Are the weaknesses of the fire department 
transparent so that the community can better offer support? (9) 

50



15. Are they out in the community educating and informing about the prevention and dangers? Stay engaged in 
the community. Need focused public outreach and education - needs more time and attention and continued 
coordination with the city. (9) 

16. Community expectation regarding planning focus on you rather than on all of the agencies that are involved. 
Mutual aid. (8) 

17. Don’t forget or be dismissive of the more rural areas needs/wants in the fire district. Response to outlying 
areas. (8) 

18. Are they being compensated sufficiently? Are our firefighters compensated fairly/equal to the value of their 
work? (8) 

19. Skillset diversity. Do we have enough EMTs to meet surge and can we manage diverse environmental 
conditions? (6) 

20. Provide career opportunities. Maintain a well-trained and competent workforce. (6) 

21. Limits on ability to engage in prescribed fire and fuel reduction efforts. (5) 

22. The department appears to be missing an administrative or deputy fire chief. (5) 

23. Social media/misinformation management. Communication with community in large events.  (5) 

24. Communication with CAL-FIRE.  (5) 

25. Increase in need to respond to “neighboring” areas outside our district or areas far outside our district (spread 
too thin).  (5) 

26. Evacuation plans - traffic, kids (school buses, BCG in session: boys and girls clubs).  (5) 

27. Accumulation of fuels within 2017 and 2020 burn areas. (4) 

28. Political Interference.  (4) 

29. Training. (4) 

30. Participation in policy-making regarding new development in the wildland interface will be politically 
challenging.  (4) 

31. Public opinion when the fire department wants to do the 4th of July celebration at the Vallejo Home. Public 
perception of the fire service.  (4) 

32. Balancing urban and rural needs -equipment and training is different.  (4) 

33. Traffic/transportation during emergencies. 

34. Improve/strengthen/re-establish better relations with the adjoining fire districts. (3) 

35. Transition from volunteer to a paid/volunteer department. (3) 

36. Increased pressure from the community due to insurance costs and availability. (3) 

37. Succession planning for the district - pressure from county to continue to expand district beyond return-on-
investment optimization. (3) 

51



38. Taking on too much (overworked staff), including statewide mutual aid dependence on local government. (3) 

39. Water wasted from wells around Sonoma when water gets tested (example - well by Valley of the Moon 
Nursery). (3) 

40. The future of consolidations with other agencies. (2) 

41. Is there a fire cadet program? (1) 

42. Not able to pass a parcel tax. (1) 

Positive Community Feedback 

The CPSE promotes the belief that the community’s view on the organization’s strengths must be established for 
a strategic plan to be valid. Needless efforts are often put forth in over-developing areas that are already successful. 
However, proper utilization and promotion of the strengths may often help the organization overcome or offset 
some identified weaknesses. The following written comments were received (verbatim, in no particular order):  

● Continue to keep positive engagement with the community. 

● Remind your firefighters to communicate and to stay positive with community members. 

● Attitude. 

● Involvement with the community. 

● Organization within the department. 

● Leadership. 

● Positive culture. 

● Strong leadership. 

● Economic support. 

● Retention. 

● Fire Prevention. 

● Clearly professionally led and managed. 

● Willingness of board and staff to consider agency expansion through reorganization with neighboring 
agencies. 

● Excellent response times/good ISO ratings. 

● Based on one experience, arrival time was quick. 

● Regular social media posts on emergency and non-emergency situations. 

● Works with other community entities and groups. 

● Great response times. 

● Community relations/interactions. 

● Working with other agencies. 

52



● Stable budget. 

● ISO #1 rating. 

● Support for fire risk reduction project outside of SVFD. 

● Involvement in county-wide protection plan (CWPP) process. 

● Short response times. 

● Coordination with CAL-FIRE. 

● Great involvement in the community. 

● Highly regarded and trusted by those you serve. 

● Flexible and cooperative with constituents. 

● Great service for the budget. 

● Huge community involvement. 

● Paramedic coverage.  

● Our ability to respond, history. 

● Training programs. 

● Modern equipment, maintained. 

● Diverse force- community involved. 

● Future-focused- inspires youth. 

● Respectful. 

● Leading-edge tools and equipment - keeping up-to-date. 

● Teamwork. 

● Collaboration. 

● Resilience. 

● Great public education and community outreach, open house, etc. 

● Good partner for CAL-FIRE 

● Staff from top down are open, understanding, and easy to talk to and work with. 

● Appears to be a good environment to work for. Guys of all ranks seem happy. 

● Empathy. 

● Response times. 

● Training of the team. 

● Communication and support of the community. 

● Absolutely love and appreciate our amazing fire district staff and leadership. 

● Connected to hometown, roots are deep in the community. 

● Heroic during the 2017 disaster. 

53



● Stoic in the face of some terrible community members. 

● Professionalism. 

● Engagement with partners/community. 

● Operational competence. 

● Department leadership. 

● Staff engagement and support. 

● Great community partner-CPR classes 

● Appreciate knowing we can call non-emergency number for support. 

● Chief Akre does excellent community outreach. 

● Gary Johnson participates as a member of our fire safe council. 

● Dedicated, trusted personnel. 

● I trust the fire department and its leaders. 

● We have a great fire department. I hope we can keep it that way. 

● Being visible in the community. 

● Message board outside of some fire departments. 

● Compassion when responding to calls and transporting patients. 

● Good morale. 

● Good training. 

● Good leadership. 

● Sufficient staffing. 

● ALS ambulance service. 

● Involvement with the community and presence at events, e.g., fireworks show on the 4th of July. 

● Good public feedback and PR for the organization and what is being accomplished. 

● Works well with neighboring agencies. 

● Quality staff and Leadership. 

● Fiscally stable. 

● Sharing resources. 

● Good public image. 

● Excellent working relationship with co-operators. 

● Quality workforce. 

● Quality equipment. 

● Collaborative/community-driven. 

● Nice/respectful and courteous staff. 

54



● Open to ideas. 

● Connection with community organizations and groups. 

● Excellent leadership from Chief Akre and management team. 

● Leadership on a county basis on various initiatives - ensuring a professional voice and leadership for the valley. 

● True community-oriented department - active in various community activities, including 4th of July. 

● High level of training. 

● Strong sense of community. 

● Very professional. 

● Ready and willing to adapt to change. 

● Strong leadership and management team. 

● Vision for future needs of department and district. 

● Seems to care about the community it serves and makes rapid response. 

● Seems to have enough staffing to handle most emergencies. 

● Seems to have modern equipment to get the job done. 

● I actually can’t think of anything bad or negative to say. 

● The fire department has already always been there. 

Other Thoughts and Comments 

The community was asked to share any other comments about the department or its services. The following 
written comments were received (verbatim, in no particular order):  

● Best of luck with the process. 

● I have had the honor of working with this team during several events. We are lucky to have them in our 
community. 

● There are ongoing collaborations 24/7 - first responders and first receivers to grow and sustain. More joint 
drills with the community and hospital. 

● I recently attended a softball event in which there was a large gathering of our community. I was very pleased 
to see many firefighters in uniform attending the event. Overall, very pleased with and have a high level of 
respect for SVFRA. 

● I appreciate the cooperative approach of SVFD chief and staff. 

● Free Public training for fire extinguisher use. 

● Thank you. 

●  Keep up the great work. 

● Thank you for being so proactive and supportive of the community. It has and continues to be the basis of 
this organization. 

55



● Thanks for being what a fire agency should be. 

● Well done. 

● Increase Agua Caliente station outreach. 

● I recognize the department’s effort in hiring a workforce reflective of the community. 

● I am really concerned about living in a building in the WUI. Should we be building there (or rebuilding)? 
Should we be doing more preventative burning within neighborhoods- not just in the wildlands? 

● Thanks for lunch, thanks for the opportunity to make comments. 

● SVFD is both a leader and model for other fire districts. They set an example for innovation, progress, and 
leadership. Sonoma/Sonoma Valley is fortunate. 

● Keep up the great work. 

● Appreciate this process and being included. Look forward to seeing the results. 

● Recommend exploring the creation of an organization like Marin Fire Protection Authority for Sonoma - 
need collaborative sharing on wildfire adaption. 

● Super thankful for your work Chief Akre and staff. 

● Appreciate the initiative. 

● Thank you for including me today. 

● In the fall/summer of 2021, the fire department was incredible about putting out fires before they get out of 
control. Thank you. 

● Thank you for having us. I like the prioritization worksheet. 

● Joe Gilmore is dope. 

● Steve Akre is always responsive to my media inquiries.  

56



Appendix 2 - SWOT 

Strengths  
It is important for any organization to identify its strengths to ensure that it can provide the services requested by 
the community and that its strengths are consistent with the issues facing the organization. Often, identifying 
organizational strengths leads to the channeling of efforts toward primary community needs that match those 
strengths. Programs that do not match organizational strengths, or the organization’s primary function, should 
be seriously reviewed to evaluate the rate of return on staff time and allocated funds.  

Through a consensus process, the agency stakeholders identified the department’s strengths as follows:  

High morale Labor-management relations Support from command staff 

Community relations Staffing adaptability Pride in EMS 

Interpersonal relations Maintained workforce Local area knowledge 

Flexibility Opportunity (individual growth) Flexibility of workforce 

Scene management Selflessness Fire family inclusiveness  

Customer service Family-oriented Paramedic school sponsorships 

High-quality EMS Maintenance program Succession planning 

Mentorship Full-time recruitment and retention In-house fire mechanic 

Volunteer program Professionalism  Embracing technology 

Cutting edge equipment Training program Increasing bilingual staff  

Community support Mutual aid given Increased overhead (Admin BC) 

Fire prevention bureau Allied agencies relations Impact fees 

Career development SOP/Policy manual Empowered workforce 

High-level involvement (County leadership) Forward-thinking (anticipating and mitigating issues) 

Administrative staff – (human resources and finance) Dedication of the workforce (no mandatory holdovers) 

Incident command team knowledge and experience High-level experience from strike team involvement 

Cohesiveness between paid and volunteer staff Apparatus replacement program 

Progressive and willing to reflect Strength of Sonoma Valley Firefighters Assoc. (SVFFA) 

Association fundraising ability Inclusion: Areas of responsibility 

Facilities improvements by inhouse staff Flexibility in scheduling 

Working relationships with SVFD Board Adaptability/versatility - all risks hazards 

DICO: Department infection control officer Faith in leadership 

Fire chief’s open-door policy/culture  

  

57



Weaknesses 

For any organization to either begin or continue to move progressively forward, it must be able to identify its 
strengths and those areas where it functions poorly or not at all. These areas of needed enhancements are not the 
same as threats to be identified later in this document but rather those day-to-day issues and concerns that may 
slow or inhibit progress. The agency stakeholders identified the following items as weaknesses:  

Station 2- building and location (facilities) Shop personnel – lack of 

Shop – size/too small Lots of new people 

Lack of involvement in association events Only two staffed ambulances 

Uniform training standards Policy enforcement 

Lack of support for administrative Bilingual admin 

Intra-agency communication Logistical support for recent growth 

Recruitment of volunteer firefighters Station 5 seismic safety 

Old computers and phones Bilingual document translation services  

Outdated radio comms Zone/regional training 

Fire service experience levels Work overload 

Officer soft skills/administrative skills development Location of ladder truck (move to a different station) 

Onboarding process Formal fire service education  

Fire station etiquette and behavior Prevention staffing 

Inadaquate number of ambulances Station 5 roof leak 

Coordination of volunteer callback responses Bilingual line staff 

Unstaffed ladder truck  Volunteer callbacks 

Loss of station 6 Utilization of the Duty Chief 3 (DC3) program 

Location and facilities of the training tower Need for task-book oversight 

Lack of accessibility and working knowledge of operating 
budget 

Operational challenges of Sonoma Development Center 
(SDC) contract  

Unwillingness to conduct WUI inspections Recent loss of institutional knowledge (retirements) 

Fundamentals of radio use for volunteers Succession planning 

Social media management SVFD branding 

 
  

58



Opportunities  

The opportunities for an organization depend on identifying strengths and weaknesses and how they can be 
enhanced. The focus of opportunities is not solely on existing service but on expanding and developing new 
possibilities inside and beyond the traditional service area. The agency stakeholders identified the following 
potential opportunities: 

Diverse Community engagement Grant funding- private, state, local, federal 

Public education - wildfire preparedness, evacuation Partnerships – auto/mutual aid and other public safety 

Program integration- ecology center, county projects Legislative input/engagement - state and local codes 

Social media Attend National Fire Academy (NFA) courses 

Attend professional training conferences Participate in regional training 

Fundraising events Continued support of local and regional 

Training facilities Youth recruiting 

Continued participation in the mutual aid system Further consolidation with fire districts 

Community partnerships Consolidation inside Sonoma City 

Improve mapping with county GIS Public/private partnership for infrastructure 

Specialized mutual response teams Regional purchasing 

Development of (ECC) Emergency Communication Center Prescribed burning 

SDC Sonoma Development Center Firesafe council/FIREWISE 

Engage with Spanish-speaking communities County-wide sales tax measure 

MWPA- Marin wildfire prevention authority Regional maintenance program 

Community paramedicine  Regional company officer program 

The Springs Specific Plan  Update pre-fire attack plans 

Updating battery-powered equipment Wildfire fuels reduction 

Ambulance contract with Sonoma Raceway Funding through the 501c3 

Explorer/Cadet program Youth outreach 

Paramedic program internships Hosting classes 

 
  

59



Threats  

By recognizing possible threats, an organization can reduce the potential for loss. Fundamental to the success of 
any strategic plan is the understanding that threats are not entirely and/or directly controlled by the organization. 
Some of the current and potential threats identified by the agency stakeholders were as follows:   

Budget cuts Revenue challenges (SAFER grants) 

Economic recession Other departments recruiting employees 

Supply chain issues Increased mutual-aid ambulance demand 

Hospital closure Master mutual aid drawdown 

Drought; loss of water supply, increased fire activity Pandemic 

Terrorist attack Dependance on technology 

Increased population, increased call volume Increased cost of living (inflation) 

Negative public perception Outside agency consolidation 

Loss of contracts for service with City of Sonoma Cyberattack 

Natural disaster; valley access/egress issues Sonoma Development Center (SDC) future 

Social unrest Changes to Medicare reimbursement 

Increased housing in the (WUI) Wildland Urban Interface Lack of public self-sufficiency  

Effectiveness of messaging Lack of qualified employee pool 

Litigation Freedom of information Act – requests and compliance 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliance County of Sonoma Exclusive Operating Area (EOA) 

201 Rights (statutory ambulance authority) Homeless population 

Affordable workforce housing The Springs Specific Plan  

Loss of funding support (vegetation management, 
REDCOM (dispatch)) 

State and federal mandates/guidelines (i.e., vaccine 
mandate, banning small motors, gas vehicles) 

Changes in elected officials AMR leaving dispatch contract 

Loss of fossil fuels Lack of hospital specialty services 

Change in Coastal Valley EMS policies 

 
 
  

60



Appendix 3 - Critical and Service Gap Issues Identified by Agency Stakeholders 

The following information is the raw data comprised from the deliberation of the two workgroups. The 
information in each table is linked to a strategic initiative that the overall group, by consensus, determined was 
something the department should pursue for change and continuous improvement. 

Initiative Link Group 1 Group 2 

Capital Assets 
and 

Infrastructure 

External Collaboration 
o Social media/branding 
o Consolidation 
o Community outreach 
o Regional collaboration (programs, 

neighboring department relationships, SDC) 
o Collaboration with local partners (Fire safe 

council, Firewise committee, ecological 
resources) 

Community Outreach 
o Communication, social media 

management 
o Community partnership 
o Bilingual documentation 
o Branding 
o Vegetation management 
o Transparency 

Workforce 

Workforce 
o Staffing (3rd ambulance, shop, administration, 

prevention) 
o Recruitment/retention (full and part-time) 
o Health and wellness 
o Bilingual (increase number of employees) 
o Affordable housing 
o Community paramedicine 

Human Resources 
o City of Sonoma SAFER funding 
o Recruitment and retention of volunteer 

and career staff 
o Additional maintenance staff 
o Bilingual staff 
o Health and wellness 
o Additional ambulance company 
o Development (grant writing skills, soft 

skills) 

Community 
Outreach and 
Collaboration 

Infrastructure 
o Station 2/location 
o Shop (size) 
o IT (new radios, computers, phones, servers, 

software) 
o Sufficient equipment 
o Station 5 
o Facility maintenance 
o Increase security at stations 
o Supply chain issues 

Capital Assets 
o Facilities (Station 5 seismic retrofit, 

Station 2 relocation, maintenance shop 
expansion 
regional training facility) 

o Fleet (Vehicle replacement schedule, 
increasing fleet) 

o Equipment (IT infrastructure, radios) 
o Grant funding 

Training 

Training 
o Soft Skills 
o Leadership 
o Career development 
o Succession planning 
o Onboarding 

 
o Standardization 
o Cadet program 
o Task book oversight 
o Area familiarization 
o Regional training 

N/A 

Regional 
Consolidation 

N/A 

Regional Consolidation 
o City of Sanoma 
o Outside district consolidation 
o Emergency communication center 

 

61



 
 

62


	Cover_9.20.22
	Agenda_9.20.22
	7a_Agenda_Item_Summary_AB361
	7b _Agenda_Item_Minutes
	7b_Minutes_8.09.22
	Chiefs_report_8.09.22
	7b_Minutes_8.30.22
	10a_Agenda Item_Final Budget_9.20.22
	10a_Final Budget FY22-23
	10a_01-Res 22-23 Final Budget
	10b_Agenda Item_Strategic Plan
	10b_Sonoma Valley Strategic Plan 2022-2027
	Organizational Background
	Organizational Structure
	Community-Driven Strategic Planning
	Process and Acknowledgements
	Community Group Findings
	Community Priorities

	Agency Stakeholder Group Findings
	Mission
	Values
	Programs and Services
	SWOT Analysis
	Critical Issues and Service Gaps
	Strategic Initiatives
	Goals and Objectives
	Vision
	Performance Measurement
	The Success of the Strategic Plan
	Glossary of Terms, Acronyms, and Initialisms
	Appendix 1 – Community Input
	Community Expectations
	Areas of Community Concern
	Positive Community Feedback
	Other Thoughts and Comments

	Appendix 2 - SWOT
	Strengths
	Weaknesses
	Opportunities
	Threats

	Appendix 3 - Critical and Service Gap Issues Identified by Agency Stakeholders




